
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

November 01, 2021 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  November 01, 2021 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

November 01, 2021 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Call to Order 

ITEM  Closed Session - Economic Development and Personnel 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Rev. Boyce Porter - Geneva Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Certification Recognition - Ken Bowman 

B. Camden Heritage Festival Sponsor and Volunteer Recognition - Randy Krainiak & Brenda 

Bowman 

ITEM 4. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  November 01, 2021 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

ITEM 5. Public Hearing 

A. New High School Construction Financing - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 6. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. NCDOT Abandonment Petition - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 7. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Vicious/Dangerous Dog Appeals Board - Sheriff Kevin Jones 

ITEM 8. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

B. Planning Board 

ITEM 9. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - October 4, 2021 

B. Budget Amendment 

C. Tax Collection Report 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

F. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

G. Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment (Edwards) 

H. Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendment to UDO 

ITEM 10. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 11. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 12. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM 13. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 14. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 3.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Certification Recognition - Ken Bowman 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

County Manager Ken Bowman will recognize Sarah Hill as she has completed the three-year 

program of the Southeast Tourism Society Marketing College and earned certification as a 

Travel Marketing Professional. 

3.A

Packet Pg. 4



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 3.B 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden Heritage Festival Sponsor and Volunteer 

Recognition 

 

Attachments:  

 

Sponsors and volunteers of the Camden Heritage Festival will be recognized by Commissioner 

Randy Krainiak and Mrs. Brenda Bowman. 

3.B

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   New High School Financing 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

The Board of Commissioners will receive public input pertaining to the construction of the new 

High School as required by the USDA to move forward with financing. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 6



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NCDOT Abandonment Petition 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

At the October 4, 2021 meeting of the Board of Commissioners, the Board received information 

and heard from Mr. Bob McDaniels concerning a request to abandon the portion of Shipyard 

Road adjacent to his property.  The Board voted to place this matter on the November 1st 

agenda for consideration. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 7



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   September Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Report (PDF) 

 

Summary:  September Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

7.A

Packet Pg. 8



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
34

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Kevin Jones, 

 Sheriff 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Vicious/Dangerous Dog Appeals Board - Sheriff Kevin Jones 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

Sheriff Jones will address the Board in regard to establishing a Vicious or Dangerous Dog Panel 

/ Appeals Board per General Statute 67-4.1 Subsection C. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 16



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 NC Cooperative Extension 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

 

Attachments: JCPC Applications (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

It is the request of Marcia Berry that James Midgett, Molly Brown and Stephanie McGirl be 

appointed to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

8.A

Packet Pg. 17



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
 (

31
38

 :
 J

u
ve

n
ile

 C
ri

m
e 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ci

l)



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
 (

31
38

 :
 J

u
ve

n
ile

 C
ri

m
e 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ci

l)



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

C
P

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
 (

31
38

 :
 J

u
ve

n
ile

 C
ri

m
e 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ci

l)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Planning Board 

 

Attachments: Marshall Lee Powell_Various (PDF) 

Dave Parks_Planning (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Marshall Lee Powell will be considered to fill the South Mills Township vacancy and Dave 

Parks will be considered to fill the Courthouse Township vacancy. 

8.B

Packet Pg. 21



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ar
sh

al
l L

ee
 P

o
w

el
l_

V
ar

io
u

s 
 (

31
48

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
)



8.B.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

av
e 

P
ar

ks
_P

la
n

n
in

g
  (

31
48

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - October 4, 2021 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_100421 (DOCX) 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 24



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

5:45 PM – Closed Session 

7:00 PM – Regular Meeting 

October 4, 2021 

Historic Courtroom - Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on October 4, 2021 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 5:45 PM.  Also Present: Vice-Chairman Ross Munro, 

Commissioners Clayton Riggs and Randy Krainiak.  Commissioner Tiffney White participated in the open session 

only as per the Remote Participation Policy.     

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel and economic development. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak 

ABSENT: Tiffney White 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak 

ABSENT: Tiffney White 

 

Chairman Tom White recessed the Board and reconvened at 7:00 PM.  Commissioner Tiffney White remotely 

joined by telephone at 7:00 PM for the Regular Meeting.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Bill Blake gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

The agenda was amended to add Jury Commission to Board Appointments as Item 6.E.   

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Brenda Bowman reminded everyone of the Camden Heritage Festival to take place Saturday, October 9th, 10 AM to 

3 PM at the Community Park.  Mrs. Bowman expressed appreciation to the sponsors of the festival.  The final 

volunteer meeting will take place October 7th at 5:30 at the Community Park.  Volunteers are still needed.  The 

Swamp Monster Costume Contest will be taking place during the festival and additional participants are welcomed.   

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

 

Thomas and Kim O’Brien addressed the Board in regard to their Vehicle Property Tax bill.  The 2015 vehicle has 

over 200,000 miles on it and the appraised value is more than what was paid for it.  According to Mrs. O’Brien the 

trade-in value is $13,699 to $18,000 but the appraisal value listed on the bill is $21,430.  It is their request that the 

Board make an adjustment due to the age and mileage of the truck.   

 

ITEM 4.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Dismal Swamp Welcome Center – Sarah Hill 

 

Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Director Sarah Hill included the following in her presentation: 

• The Wide Open Spaces video for which Camden County and Mike Martine with Eye Candy Digital Video 

won a 2021 Bronze Telly Award in Online Commercials.  The promotional video was created last fall 

utilizing NC Recovery Grant Funds procured through Visit NC.   

• Tourism Development Authority is working with Mr. Bowman/Economic Development on creating new & 

attractive “Welcome To Camden County” signage for Hwy 17 & Hwy 158.  New colorful signage, with 

current logo, welcomes visitors to our beautiful county and spotlights one of our major attractions, the 

Dismal Swamp State Park.  Ms. Hill presented a draft of proposed signage along with estimates for #4 

signs, posts and installation.  County Staff is working with NCDOT for necessary approvals.  The DOT 

engineer at the Welcome Center recommended Bryant Signs as a potential vendor.   
 

Motion to approve the placement of  4’x8’ signs along Highway 17 North and South and near the Belcross 

intersection.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to use Bryant Sign Company of Columbia, North Carolina for the new County signs as recommended 

by DOT and County staff.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman Tom White recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer 

District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

 
 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

                

 
Motion to approve the monthly reports as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

B. Camden Station Pump Station 

 

The developer of the subdivision is required to install piping and a pump station to handle the wastewater generated 

in the development.  The County is proposing to fund expanding the system to handle future growth in the 

surrounding area. 

 

The primary objectives of this are: 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

• Provide for growth with minimum investment by the county and future developers. 

• Minimize borings crossing the road to reach the force main. 

• Minimize the amount of pumping stations that the County would have to provide maintenance for. 

• There would only need to be one other station installed on the adjoining property in the future, instead of 

one at each parcel.  This station would feed into the station being built in the subdivision. 

 

With this proposal, the county would benefit financially by partnering with the developer by only funding the cost of 

the expansion, not the entire cost of a future station, if the County were required to build one on their own.  This 

would also provide easy access to the sewer system, if one of the properties’ on-site treatment system fails (as 

required by the County’s Sewer Use Ordinance).  The reduction in number of stations also presents a maintenance 

and operation cost savings by not having several small stations. 

 

  
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

   
 

 
 

In that Commissioner Krainiak owns property near this location, he requested to be recused from the discussion and 

consideration of this item.   

 

Motion to recuse Commissioner Krainiak from the discussion and consideration of this agenda item. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White 

RECUSED: Randy Krainiak 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

Motion to accept the proposal of Bissell Professional Group to increase the size of the pump station at the new 

Camden Station Subdivision at a cost of $41,500.   

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White 

RECUSED: Randy Krainiak 

 

C. New Wastewater Plant Design 

 

  
 

   
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

County Manager Ken Bowman added that the County had received an extension on the referenced grant and that 

this proposal is for the engineering package to expand the wastewater treatment plant.  It does not include an 

expansion of the wastewater treatment plant.  The recent estimates provided to produce 250,000 gallons a day were 

over $8 million.  When the time comes to move forward with an expansion, this portion will be complete. 

 

Motion to accept the proposal by Timmons Group for the design work for the new wastewater plant in South 

Mills. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Consent Agenda  

 

A. Surplus Property 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Adjourn 

    

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

Chairman Tom White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 5.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

July 2021 

 
   

    
 

   

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

  30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

 

   

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

August 2021 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 

 
 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax reports as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

Mrs. Anderson added that the Tax Office had received calls from citizens in regard to the tax increase.  Staff has 

worked with a number of citizens, explaining payment options.  The deadline for payment is January 5, 2022.  

Revaluation will begin in January.  The Sheriff’s Office will have vehicle descriptions of revaluation staff and they 

will also wear identification badges. 

 

B. Camden County Schools Request – Ken Bowman 

 

The boiler at the High School that services the science wing to the media center is thirty years old and must be 

replaced. It is inspected annually by the state and during the recent 2021 inspection it was noted that water is leaking 

at the weld seams. It was also noted the inside of the boiler is rusted and therefore was condemned for use by the 

state inspector. This type of failure is non-repairable. Mr. Larry Lawrence, School Division, located a new 

replacement boiler with a manufacturer in Maryland. However, it is the only one available at this time. The cost for 

the new boiler including installation is $68,300.  If the boiler is not replaced then those sections of the school will 

not have heat this winter. The School has requested the county provide funding for the new boiler.   

 

Motion to approve the new boiler for the high school as requested. 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

C. NCDOT Abandonment Petition – Ken Bowman 

 

Mr. Bob McDaniels, 200 Shipyard Road and Mr. & Mrs. Richard Durham, 201 Shipyard Road, are requesting that 

Camden County support their request to abandon the portion of Shipyard Road adjacent to their properties.  The 

County Manager and select staff have spoken to Mr. McDaniels about this request and the reason for abandoning 

this portion of the road.  He pointed out that it is to keep people from turning around in his yard when they get to the 

end of the road.  It should be noted that NCDOT’s Right-of-Way extends approximately 25 feet to the left and right 

of the center line of the road.  If this request is approved by NCDOT, this portion of the road will be taken out of the 

its maintenance system.   

 

 
 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

   
 

 
 
Commissioner Krainiak questioned what would change if that portion of the road is abandoned?  This was in 

reference to Mr. McDaniels’ concern of the vehicles turning around on his property when they get to the end of the 

road.   

 
Mr. McDaniels explained that the individuals could then turn around in his driveaway as opposed to his yard.  He 

would like to provide a means of egress for people to legally turnaround without trespassing.   

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

Vice-Chairman Ross Munro expressed concern that in an emergency situation on the water, the boat ramp would 

need to be accessible to get rescue watercraft to the site.   

 

Mr. McDaniels explained that the boat ramp at the end of the road is on the Durham’s property.  It is not in the right-

of-way.     

 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs explained that the survey that he viewed shows the 25 right-of-way runs into the river.  

Mr. McDaniels explained that the survey Commissioner Riggs is looking at is not accurate.  He maintained that the 

right-of-way is 25-feet on each side of the center line of the road. Mr. McDaniels also maintains that the legal 

description of Shipyard Road is 1.0 miles, which ends at the portion of the road that he is petitioning to be 

abandoned.  At that point in the road is a magnetic marker that was placed there by an unknown individual. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak requested a survey that shows the markers on the property.   

 

After a brief discussion, Commissioner Riggs made a motion. 

 

Motion to table this matter until the November 1, 2021 meeting to gather more information. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

D. Treasure Point Land Transfer – Austin Brown 

 

The Camden County Cooperative Extension Board met in recent months to discuss transferring a portion of the 

Treasure Point property to Camden County.  The ultimate goal for this decision is the need to build a new building 

to host events and recreation activities for the citizens of Camden. They want to pursue The North Carolina Parks 

and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) grant opportunity in May 2022 to help fund the cost of the building. During 

their research they were made aware the land has to be under the control of the locality. Therefore, they would like 

to donate the property to the County. Lastly, the modular they are currently occupying will not be needed if you 

decide to move forward with this option.  Staff recommendation is to accept this property from the Camden County 

Cooperative Extension Board to allow them to pursue a PARTF grant for building a stand-alone facility on the 

property. 

 

     
 

   
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

   
 

   
 

  
 

   
 

Motion to accept the proposed portion of Treasure Point property to allow Cooperative Extension to pursue a 

PARTF grant to build a stand-alone facility at that location, subject to the donor’s agreement. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

E. South Camden Fire Department Request – Kirk Jennings 

 

South Camden Fire Department is requesting approval from the Board of Commissioners to purchase two (2) E-One 

1830 Commercial Tankers. This request is due to the current age of the existing tankers and the ability to purchase 

the equipment before a significant price increase goes into effect.  The quote received from Fire Connections (the 

manufacturer) in July is for $869,384. Since this amount is more than what the South Camden Fire Department has 

in their budget they will be required to apply for a loan to purchase the vehicles. SCFD received a financing 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

proposal from Leasing 2 (Loan Company) on August 27th and received 3 options for financing. The goal is to 

finance this purchase for a period of seven (7) years making a down payment of $246,780.54, a performance bond of 

$3,477.54 from fund balance and receiving a pre-payment discount to pay in full and finance the remaining 

$600,000. 

 

   
 

  
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2021-10-01 Approving Terms for the Financing of (2) E-One 1830 Commercial 

Tankers for the South Camden Fire Department. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 6.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. East Albemarle Regional Library Board – Reappointment of Sandra Duckwall and Appointment of 

Virginia Kuklewski 

B. Library Board – Appointment of Phyllis Timmerman 

C. ABC Board – Reappointment of Glenn Carey 

D. Board of Adjustment – Appointment of Michael Stimac 

E. Jury Commission – Reappointment of Gail Perry 

 

Motion to approve the Board Appointments as presented.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 7.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – August 2, 2021 

B. Budget Amendments 

 

 

 

 

   
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

   
 

  
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

   
 

C. Tax Collection Reports 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

 

   
 

E. Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

 
 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

H. Surplus Property 

 

Department Item Disposal Method Suggested Value Reason for Surplus 

NC Cooperative 

Extension 

Laptop charging 

station 

Donate to Camden 

Early College 

$150 No longer needed 

Parks & 

Recreation 

Star Trac Treadmill GovDeals $50 Touchpad needs to 

be replaced 

 

I. Order for the Collection of 2021 Taxes 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

J. Revised Regular Meeting Schedule 

 

 
 

K. Albemarle Regional Broadband Expansion Project – Letter of Support 

 

 
 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

October 4, 2021 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 8.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

• Volunteers needed to serve on various boards and committees.  Check the county website for an 

application. 

• 1st Annual Camden Heritage Festival – October 9th; 10 AM – 3 PM at the Community Park.   

• Installation of Broadband fiber is now moving forward at the Commerce Park with a programmed 

completion date of mid-November. 

• Library schedule has a major completion date of December 31, 2021 with a move-in date of January 2022. 

• In August the NC Digital Team visited the Camden County Heritage Museum to scan museum materials 

for archiving.  Camden County was the 100th county to be included in the collection. 

• Continue to be vigilant with the COVID-19 variant.  Even though you’ve had the vaccination you can still 

get COVID. 

• Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – November 1, 2021. 

 

 

ITEM 9.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Riggs – According to a recent meeting with Albemarle Regional Health Services approximately one-

third of Camden County citizens have been vaccinated; 8 deaths due to COVID; 33 active cases currently. 

 

ITEM 10.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. NC Forest Service Annual Report 

D. JCPC Meeting Minutes FY 2020-2021 

 

ITEM 11.  OTHER MATTERS          

None. 

 

ITEM 12.  ADJOURN           

There being no further matters for discussion, Chairman Tom White adjourned the meeting at 8:25 PM.   

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

            

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

10
04

21
  (

31
49

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 4
, 2

02
1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.B 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendment 

 

Attachments: 21-22 BA 011 Sheriff's Grant Funds (DOC) 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 52



                                                       2021-22-BA011 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2022. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10390510-433500 Miscellaneous      $2263.00 

 

Expenses  

105100-550200 Technology Grant                                   $2263.00 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds from Miscellaneous Revenues to the 

Technology Grant from Grant Funds.    

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 1st day of November, 2021. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

1-
22

 B
A

 0
11

 S
h

er
if

f's
 G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d
s 

 (
31

39
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.C 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

9.C

Packet Pg. 54



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

31
40

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.D 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV Monthly Report December, 2021 Renewals

 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report December, 21 Renewals due 1/15/2022 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

9.D

Packet Pg. 56



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
 D

ec
em

b
er

, 2
02

1 
R

en
ew

al
s 

 (
31

28
 :

 D
M

V
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.E 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 SEPTEMBER, 21

 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 September, 21 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

9.E

Packet Pg. 58



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
, 2

1 
 (

31
29

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.F 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

9.F

Packet Pg. 60



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
31

35
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.G 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment (Edwards) 

 

Attachments: 20211101_AgendaSummary_SandyHookRezoning

 (DOCX) 

20211101StaffReport (DOCX) 

ComparisionVCtoNR (PDF) 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary (DOCX) 

Sandy Hook application (PDF) 

2021-12-01 Ordinance for Ricky Edwards Rezoning

 (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

9.G

Packet Pg. 62



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   November 1, 2021 

 

Attachments:   Sandy Hook Rezoning Findings 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Request for Zoning Map Amendment from Ricky Lee Edwards 

 

 

 

Summary: 

 

Ricky Lee Edwards has requested a map amendment for 4 parcels of approximately 4.5 acres from 

Village Commercial (VC) and 37 acres to Neighborhood Residential (SR).  All parcels are located off 

Sandy Hook Rd in the Shiloh Township.   

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on October 5, 2021.  On October 20, 2021, the Planning Board 

approved the rezoning request with a 4-0 vote. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map.  The CAMA Future 

Land Use Maps has the majority of property identified as Crossroads Commercial. 

 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map 

which shows the current Village Commercial Zoning Parcels to be Community Core. 

 

Recommendation:   

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for December 6, 2021 

 

9.G.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1_

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
an

d
yH

o
o

kR
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

UDO 2021-10-012 

 Zoning Map Amendment  
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

 

File Reference: UDO 2021-10-012 

Project Name:           Rezoning on Sandy Hook Rd 

PIN:    Various  

    

 

Applicant:               Ricky Lee Edwards  

Address:  226 Milltown Rd 

 Shiloh, NC 27974  

 

Phone:  252-331-7564 

Email:  NA 

 

Agent for Applicant:  NA  

Address:  

           

Phone:    

Fax:   

Email:     

 

Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

October 5, 2021 Neighborhood Meeting 

October 20, 2021 Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: October 6, 2021 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00  

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

D. Zoning Comparison VC to NR 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST:  Zoning Map Amendment from Village Commercial Zoning District to Neighborhood 

Residential Zoning District.   

  

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

DESCRIPTION: Rezone of four parcels; first parcel 03-8973-00-22-4200.0000 of approximately 1.33 

acres, second parcel 901 Sandy Hook Rd 03-8973-00-22-6302.0000, third parcel 903 Sandy Hook Rd 

03-8973-00-22-6159.0000 and fourth parcel PIN 905 Sandy Hook Rd 03-8973-00-22-6088.0000 from 

Village Commercial (VC) to Neighborhood Residential (NR).  The parcels are located in the Shiloh 

Township on Sandy Hook Road.   The property has been used as farmland and residential homes 

 

Rezoning from the Village Commercial Zoning District (Article 151.3.6.3) 

The Village Commercial district intended to foster high quality, compact, pedestrian-oriented 

development on lots within designated village centers. Development in the VC district is human-scaled 

and designed to promote visual interest for pedestrians. Ground-level retail and personal services that 

promote pedestrian activity along the street are highly encouraged and large, monolithic, automobile-

oriented developments are prohibited. New development in the district is located close to the street, 

provides passers-by with clear views into the building’s ground floor, and fosters sidewalk dining, 

outdoor seating, and interaction among pedestrians. The district requires urban-style open space (greens, 

seating areas, plazas, pocket parks, roof gardens, etc.) to be included as a part of new development. In 

addition to commercial uses, the district allows a variety of moderate-density residential development. 

New commercial, mixed-use, and multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design 

standards in ARTICLE 151.5 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 

 

Rezoning to the Neighborhood Residential Zoning District (Article 151.3.5.5) 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

 

SITE DATA 
Size of Lots:   The 4 lots are between 40,000 -59,000 square feet                          

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Village Commercial (VC) 

Existing Land Uses:  Farmland Residential Lots 

Proposed Use(s) –   Residential 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Village Commercial 

(VC) &  

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Village Commercial 

(VC) 

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Village 

Commercial 

(VC) 

Use & size Residential Lots & 

Farmland 

Residential Lots, 

Woods, Farmland 

Farmland Business & 

Farmland 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

MAPS for Clarification 

Vicinity Map:  Shiloh Township – Located on Sandy Hook Rd. 

 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

Zoning Map: 

 
  

Neighborhood 

Residential 

Village 

Commercial 

Working Lands 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

 

Very High in 

Land Suitability 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

Watershed, Wetlands, and Floodplain Map

 

No Watershed 

No Wetlands 

No Floodplain 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map  

  
  

Rural 

Preservation 

Rural Residential 

1-2 acres 

Crossroads 

Commercial 

Village Residential Village 

Residential 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 
 

Medium Density 

Residential 

Low Density 

Residential On 1 

acre or greater 

 

Conservation 

Medium Density 

Residential 

Community 

Core 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along Sandy Hook Road 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  Shiloh Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning should not have an impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning should not have impact on Traffic 

 
 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS for THE PLANNING BOARD TO CONSIDER:  

1. Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?  

In Camden County 0.26% is zoned as Village Commercial and 3.08% is zoned as Neighborhood Residential.  

2. Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses?  

The surrounding properties are mainly residential homes and farmland. 

3. Is the entire range of permitted uses in the requested classification more appropriate than the range 

of uses in the existing classification?  

Three of the parcels are being used as residential and the fourth parcel is being used as farmland.  The 

surrounding properties are mainly residential.  The proposed uses of the four parcels are residential.  The 

difference is between the existing Commercial zoning district and the proposed Residential zoning district. 

4. Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water services, 

other utilities?  

The proposed zoning uses should not impact public facilities. Three of the 4 properties have water meters 

currently. 

5. Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire protection 

or the school system?  

The proposed zoning uses should not have an impact on any public services.  

6. Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will result, as proposed, will result in 

lessening the enjoyment or use of adjacent properties?  

All permitted uses in the requested zoning classification should not lessen the enjoyment or use of any 

adjacent properties.  

7. Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual disturbances?  

All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, odors, light 

activity, or unusual disturbances.  

9. Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of precedents, 

or need for this type of use?  

The request does not raise serious legal questions. 

10. Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern?  

The proposed development includes no areas of environmental concern.  
   

  

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



` 

Goal when Reviewing of Zoning Regulations in accordance with the Camden County Land Use 

Plans is to make sure the project is designed to: 

• to lessen congestion in the streets;  

• to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 

• to promote health and the general welfare; 

• to provide adequate light and air;  

• to prevent the overcrowding of land; 

• to avoid undue concentration of population; and  

• to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools’ parks and other 

public requirements 

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS  

•  

• CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

•  Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

• The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on 

April 4, 2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use 

Maps has the majority of property identified as shows the current Village Commercial Zoning 

District Parcels to be  

• 2035 Comprehensive Plan 

•  Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

• The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the parcel to be 

Crossroads Commercial.  The Crossroads Commercial. District is intended to provide 

commercial uses that serve proximate rural residences. 

•  

• Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

•  

•  Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

•  

•  Property abuts Sandy Hook Rd 

•  

•  Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners -  

N/A 

 

 

Recommendations 

The Planning Board on November 20 voted unanimously to approve the Rezoning Application. 

 

Planning Staff supports the Planning Board recommendation for the approval of the Rezoning 

Application Ordinance 2021-12-01 (UDO 2021-10-12) of the Sandy Hook Rd parcels from Village 

Commercial to Neighborhood Residential.   

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.c

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
io

n
V

C
to

N
R

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



October 5, 2021 

Neighborhood Meeting for the Rezoning on Sandy Hook Rd 

Amber Curling (Camden Planning) Gail Burgess, AB Burgess (Neighbors) and Ricky Edwards (Owner) 

attended the meeting.  Mr. Jim Wilkins did not attend however he called in comments on the phone.  

None of the neighbors have any problem with the rezoning application from Village Commercial to 

Neighborhood Residential.   

All of the neighbors support the rezoning.  The discussion and concern from the neighbors was the 

zoning change which created a commercial zoning district.  The neighbors stated possible getting 

together and submitting a rezoning application for their properties.  Also, concern was expressed over 

the higher commercial tax rate.  Although it does not seem extreme,  after several years paying the 

higher rate and being retired it creates a burden on them. 

9.G.d

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

 (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



9.G.e

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

31
41

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
(E

d
w

ar
d

s)
)



9.G.e

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
d

y 
H

o
o

k 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

31
41

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
(E

d
w

ar
d

s)
)



 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-12-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which 

was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 1993, and subsequently 

amended. 

 

Article II: Amendment to Zoning Map 

 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, is hereby 

amended as follows: 

 

The properties currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor's Office as PIN numbers: 

• 03-8973-00-22-6302-0000 (1.35 Acres) 

• 03-8973-00-22-6159-0000 (0.92 Acres) 

• 03-8973-00-22-6088-0000 (0.92 Acres) 

• 03-8973-00-22-4200-0000 (1.33 Acres) 

of approximately 4.52 acres from Village Commercial (VC) to Neighborhood Residential (NR). 

 

Article III: Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its Requirements, 

including violations of any conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of 

variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable 

by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as 

provided in G. S. 14-4. 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to comply with 

any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established in 

connection with the grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, shall also 

subject the offender to a civil penalty of one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation 

continues. If the offender fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a 

violation, the penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt. A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was sent a final 

9.G.f

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1-

12
-0

1 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
R

ic
ky

 E
d

w
ar

d
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



notice of violation in accordance with Chapter 151 Article 9.8.1 Civil Penalties and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

9.G.f

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1-

12
-0

1 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
R

ic
ky

 E
d

w
ar

d
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that such violation 

exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the penalties and remedies specified 

in this section. 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be used to enforce 

this Ordinance. 

 

Article IV: Severability 

 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or other 

entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language held to be invalid shall be affected 

and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

Article V: Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 6th day of December, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.G.f

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1-

12
-0

1 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
R

ic
ky

 E
d

w
ar

d
s 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

  (
31

41
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

(E
d

w
ar

d
s)

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 9.H 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendment to UDO 

 

Attachments: 20211101_AgendaSummary_FeeTextAmendment

 (DOCX) 

2021-12-02 Ordinance Water Fees Due at Building 

Permit (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

9.H

Packet Pg. 95



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   November 1, 2021 

 

Attachments:    Text Amendments 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Zoning Text Amendments to Update Unified Development Ordinance 

 

 

Summary: 

 

The attached proposed ordinance presents a text change to the Camden County Unified Development 

Ordinance (151.6.2.7.B.a.2).  The change is necessary to comply with state law. 

 

In January 2021, the General Assembly approved changes to the North Carolina General Statutes section 

162A-213 (a) (1) that modified when public utilities can collect capacity and tap fees.  The previous 

version allowed the collection of these fees at the time a subdivision was platted.  This placed the burden 

on the developer to pay the fees. 

 

The new version adopted January 1, 2021 states that the fees are not to be collected until the building 

permit is drawn. 

 

The Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval. 

 

Recommendation: 

Motion to set Public Hearing for December 6, 2021 

 

 

9.H.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

10
1_

A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

F
ee

T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

31
36

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 U

D
O

)



Ordinance No. 2021-12-02 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County Code of Ordinances 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I:  Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 

Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently 

amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden County Code. 

 

Article II:  Construction 

 

For purposes of this Ordinance, Article III relates to substantive changes required by the new 

General Statute 162A-213 in which underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 

additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 

considered deletions to existing language. New language of proposed ordinance shall be shown 

in italics, underlined, and highlighted (italics). 

 

Article III:  Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 

Article 6.2.7 as follows: 

 

6.2.7.Potable Water Systems 

B.  Connection to County Water Supply System 

1. Major Subdivisions 

a. Procedure 
2. All water system connection fees shall be paid by the developer for each lot 

required to be connected to the County water system, prior to the submission 
of final approval  at the time of application for a building permit. 

 

9.H.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
1-

12
-0

2 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 W
at

er
 F

ee
s 

D
u

e 
at

 B
u

ild
in

g
 P

er
m

it
  (

31
36

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 U

D
O

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 12.A 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

12.A

Packet Pg. 98



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

45
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
31

45
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 12.B 

Meeting Date:   November 01, 2021 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 9/2021 

 

Attachments: 21-09 (DOCX) 

 

12.B

Packet Pg. 101



Camden County Public Library 

September 2021 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 1,051 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,042 

Computer/ Wireless Use 221/225 

Questions Answered 391 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 5/47 

Adult Programs/Attendance 1/5 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 6/42 

Days/Hours Open 28/216 

# Items in Collection 20,074 

Library Card Holders 2,827 

Curbside Pickups 3 

 

Comparison by Year 

2019-2021 

  
           

 

 

 

1911

0

1051

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019 SEP 2020 SEP 2021 SEP

Attendance

3226

1423

3042

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

2019 SEP 2020 SEP 2021 SEP

Circulation

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

1-
09

  (
31

46
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Closed Session - Economic Development and Personnel
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Rev. Boyce Porter - Geneva Baptist Church

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Presentations
	A. 3143 : Certification Recognition - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 3143 : Certification Recognition - Ken Bowman

	B. 3144 : Camden Heritage Festival Sponsor and Volunteer Recognition
	Printout: 3144 : Camden Heritage Festival Sponsor and Volunteer Recognition


	4. Public Comments
	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearing
	A. 3147 : New High School Construction Financing
	Printout: 3147 : New High School Construction Financing


	6. Old Business
	A. 3142 : NCDOT Abandonment Petition - Ken Bowman
	Printout: 3142 : NCDOT Abandonment Petition - Ken Bowman


	7. New Business
	A. 3134 : Tax Report
	Printout: 3134 : Tax Report
	a. Tax Report

	B. 3137 : Vicious/Dangerous Dog Appeals Board - Sheriff Kevin Jones
	Printout: 3137 : Vicious/Dangerous Dog Appeals Board - Sheriff Kevin Jones


	8. Board Appointments
	A. 3138 : Juvenile Crime Prevention Council
	Printout: 3138 : Juvenile Crime Prevention Council
	a. JCPC Applications

	B. 3148 : Planning Board
	Printout: 3148 : Planning Board
	a. Marshall Lee Powell_Various
	b. Dave Parks_Planning


	9. Consent Agenda
	A. 3149 : BOC Meeting Minutes - October 4, 2021
	Printout: 3149 : BOC Meeting Minutes - October 4, 2021
	a. bocminutes_100421

	B. 3139 : Budget Amendment
	Printout: 3139 : Budget Amendment
	a. 21-22 BA 011 Sheriff's Grant Funds

	C. 3140 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 3140 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	D. 3128 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 3128 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV Monthly Report December, 2021 Renewals

	E. 3129 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 3129 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 SEPTEMBER, 21

	F. 3135 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 3135 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	G. 3141 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment (Edwards)
	Printout: 3141 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment (Edwards)
	a. 20211101_AgendaSummary_SandyHookRezoning
	b. 20211101StaffReport
	c. ComparisionVCtoNR
	d. Neighborhood Meeting Summary
	e. Sandy Hook application
	f. 2021-12-01 Ordinance for Ricky Edwards Rezoning

	H. 3136 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendment to UDO
	Printout: 3136 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendment to UDO
	a. 20211101_AgendaSummary_FeeTextAmendment
	b. 2021-12-02 Ordinance Water Fees Due at Building Permit


	10. County Manager's Report
	11. Commissioners' Reports
	12. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 3145 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 3145 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 3146 : Library Report
	Printout: 3146 : Library Report
	a. 21-09


	13. Other Matters
	14. Adjourn

	Appendix
	3.A · 3143 : Certification Recognition - Ken Bowman
	3.B · 3144 : Camden Heritage Festival Sponsor and Volunteer Recognition
	5.A · 3147 : New High School Construction Financing
	6.A · 3142 : NCDOT Abandonment Petition - Ken Bowman
	7.A · 3134 : Tax Report
	7.A.a · Tax Report

	7.B · 3137 : Vicious/Dangerous Dog Appeals Board - Sheriff Kevin Jones
	8.A · 3138 : Juvenile Crime Prevention Council
	8.A.a · JCPC Applications

	8.B · 3148 : Planning Board
	8.B.a · Marshall Lee Powell_Various
	8.B.b · Dave Parks_Planning

	9.A · 3149 : BOC Meeting Minutes - October 4, 2021
	9.A.a · bocminutes_100421

	9.B · 3139 : Budget Amendment
	9.B.a · 21-22 BA 011 Sheriff's Grant Funds

	9.C · 3140 : Tax Collection Report
	9.C.a · Tax Collection Report

	9.D · 3128 : DMV Monthly Report
	9.D.a · DMV Monthly Report December, 2021 Renewals

	9.E · 3129 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	9.E.a · VEHICLE REFUNDS OVER $100.00 SEPTEMBER, 21

	9.F · 3135 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	9.F.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	9.G · 3141 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment (Edwards)
	9.G.a · 20211101_AgendaSummary_SandyHookRezoning
	9.G.b · 20211101StaffReport
	9.G.c · ComparisionVCtoNR
	9.G.d · Neighborhood Meeting Summary
	9.G.e · Sandy Hook application
	9.G.f · 2021-12-01 Ordinance for Ricky Edwards Rezoning

	9.H · 3136 : Set Public Hearing - Zoning Text Amendment to UDO
	9.H.a · 20211101_AgendaSummary_FeeTextAmendment
	9.H.b · 2021-12-02 Ordinance Water Fees Due at Building Permit

	12.A · 3145 : Register of Deeds Report
	12.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	12.B · 3146 : Library Report
	12.B.a · 21-09



